
Please ask for  Helen McAleer: Telephone (01362) 656381 
e-mail: helen.mcaleer@breckland.gov.uk 

 

 
AGENDA 

 

NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only 

 
 
 

Committee - STANDARDS COMMITTEESTANDARDS COMMITTEESTANDARDS COMMITTEESTANDARDS COMMITTEE 

Date & Time - Tuesday, 7th September, 2010 at 2.15 pm 

Venue - Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth 
House, Walpole Loke, Dereham 

 
 

 

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific 
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least two 
working days before the meeting.  If the information requested is available, 

this will be provided, and reported to Committee. 

 

Committee Members 
  
Mr. M. Eveling JP (Independent) 
Mrs. J. Jenkins (Independent)(Chairman) 
Mrs. M. Oechsle JP (Parish) 
Mrs. S.M. Matthews (Breckland) 

Mr. B. Rayner (Parish) 
Mr. G. Ridgway (Independent) 
Mr. F. Sharpe (Breckland) 
Mr. M. Whittley (Parish) 
Mr. D. Williams JP (Breckland) 
 

 
 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones 

Member Services  
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, 
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE 
 

 

Date: Thursday, 26 August 2010  
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 



Standards Committee 
7 September 2010 

 

 

PART APART APART APART A    

ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLICITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLICITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLICITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC    

 

 Page(s) 
herewith 

1. CHAIRMAN   

 
To clarify the position with regard to the Chairman’s term of office following 
the approval of recommendations by Council on 12 August 2010.  

 

2. MINUTES  1 - 5 

 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 13 July 2010. 

 

3. APOLOGIES   

 
To receive apologies for absence. 

 

4. URGENT BUSINESS   

 
To note whether the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent 
business pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 
1972. 

 

5. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   

 
Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests that they may have 
in any of the following items on the agenda.  The Members’ Code of Conduct 
requires that declarations include the nature of the interest and whether it is a 
personal or prejudicial interest. 

 

6. NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING   

 
To note the names of any non-members wishing to address the meeting. 

 

7. APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION - SWANTON MORLEY PARISH 
COUNCIL  

6 - 9 

 
Report of the Monitoring Officer. 

 

8. STANDARDS COMMITTEE POSTERS  10 - 13 

 
To consider the posters submitted. 

 

9. SCHEDULING DATES OF FUTURE SUB-COMMITTEES AND HEARINGS   

 
To discuss the possibility of identifying particular dates for future Sub-
Committee meetings. 
 

 

10. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS (STANDING ITEM)   

 
To note items for inclusion on future agendas. 

 

11. NEXT MEETING   

 
To note the date of the next meeting on 19 October 2010. 

 



1 

BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 

At a Meeting of the 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Held on Tuesday, 13 July 2010 at 2.15 pm in 
Norfolk Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, Dereham 

 
PRESENT  
Mr M.D. Eveling JP 
Mrs S.M. Matthews 
Mr G. Ridgway 
 

Mr F.J. Sharpe 
Mr M. Whittley 
 

In Attendance  
Susan Allen - Standards Officer 
Dominic Chessum - Marketing & Communications Officer 
John Chinnery - Solicitor & Standards Consultant 
Helen McAleer - Senior Committee Officer 
Stephen McGrath - Member Services Manager 
Maxine O'Mahony - Director of Organisational Development 

 
 Action By 

Chairman   
 

 In the absence of the Chairman, nominations were invited. 
 

RESOLVED that Mr Eveling be appointed chairman for the 
meeting. 

 
Mr Eveling in the Chair 

 

46/10 MINUTES  
 

 The minutes of the meeting held on 1 June 2010 were confirmed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman.  

 

   

47/10 APOLOGIES  
 

 Apologies for absence had been received from Mrs J Jenkins, Mrs M 
Oechsle, Mr B Rayner and Mr D Williams.  

 

   

48/10 DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
 

 Mr Eveling and Mr Ridgway declared a personal interest in Agenda Item 
7 (Terms of Reference of Standards Committee Members).  

 

   

49/10 ENGAGING WITH THE PUBLIC THROUGH SOCIAL MEDIA  
 

 Dominic Chessum, Marketing & Communications Officer gave Members 
a presentation on the use of Social Media to engage with the public.  
 
The first slide was a live feed to a monitoring site which showed the 
numbers of people using various Social Media sites, e-mail, blogs, etc.  
It clearly demonstrated the speed at which such sites were growing and 
the huge numbers of users. 
 
He suggested that Members could use the web as a tool to get 
messages out to their constituents and to the wider public. 
 

 

Agenda Item 2

1



Standards Committee 
13 July 2010 

 
 

2 

 Action By 

The different sorts of Social Media sites were explained.  These 
included: 
 

§ Facebook – the most prevalent site, and one which had the 
option of security settings; 

§ Twitter – a completely public site which limited messages to 
140 characters; 

§ LinkedIn – a business tool; 
§ Myspace – which used to be the most popular, but had been 

overtaken by Facebook; 
§ Foursquare – a very recent site, a sort of on-line computer 

game; 
§ Googlebuzz – another new site, but not proving very popular. 

 
A Member asked why some sites were more popular than others and 
asked if any payment was involved.  
 
The sites were funded through advertising and their stock value.  Social 
Media was a fast moving market and if sites failed to react to what users 
wanted, they quickly lost popularity. 
 
Social Media was defined as on-line interaction using text, photographs 
and videos.  Members would need to think carefully what they wanted to 
use Social Media for.  This could include photo-sharing, blogging, 
micro-blogging and/or the use of chat-rooms to hold on-line surgeries. 
 
Examples of Councillors already using Social Media sites were shown.  
They were using their sites to present their human side, and also to 
publish formal pieces of work on current issues, or to ask for their 
constituents’ opinions and to engage in discussions. 
 
Members were encouraged to look at various sites before making a 
decision about using Social Media.  They should be aware of how much 
time they would need to keep their site up-to-date, and how regularly 
they would be willing/able to check it.  They were also advised to have a 
strategy to deal with negativity and to beware of being baited. 
 
To talk on-line, Members would need to learn the etiquette of sites.  
They should be human, social and humorous (as they would be in face 
to face encounters).  They should also check their privacy settings 
regularly.  Most importantly they were advised to think before pressing 
the return key – as once a message was sent it was out of their control, 
in the public domain and not retractable. 
 
Members wondered how people, particularly Government Ministers, 
found the time to be constantly updating their Twitter or blog sites.  
Dominic said that it did not take as long as they thought and that ‘dead 
time’ such as time spent travelling or waiting for meetings to start, could 
be used. 
 
The Solicitor and Standards Consultant noted that an addendum, 
relating to the Code of Conduct, had been included when Dominic had 
given the presentation to Members and Officers. 
 
The Chairman thanked Dominic for a very interesting and well 
presented item.  

2



Standards Committee 
13 July 2010 

 
 

3 

 Action By 

50/10 TERMS OF OFFICE OF STANDARDS COMMITTEE MEMBERS  
 

 The Chairman asked the Solicitor’s views on the conflict of interest 
caused by the need for Independent Members to be in attendance and 
for an Independent Member to Chair the meeting. 
 
The Solicitor confirmed that the Chairman had to be an Independent 
Member and it was noted that the two Independent Members had 
declared a personal interest. 
 
He then presented his report which explained the existing terms of 
office of the members of the Standards Committee and suggested a 
clarification of those terms for the future. 
 
No change to the terms of District Councillors was proposed, as these 
were elected annually by the Council. 
 
The Parish Councillors had been appointed up until May 2011 (a four 
year term) and guidance suggested that no more than two terms should 
be served.  It was suggested that if the Committee considered it 
important to retain the experience of these members, they should be re-
elected for a further term.  Currently no end-date was specified. 
 
Members were concerned that if all three Parish members were re-
appointed for a further term it would still mean that all their expertise 
would be lost at the end of that time.  It was suggested that some 
means of staggering the appointments should be sought. 
 
It was proposed that if Members were re-elected at the elections in May, 
new shorter terms of appointment should be introduced to prevent all 
three parish members finishing at the same time.  In the interim, the 
term of existing members could be extended to provide cover until new 
members were appointed. 
 
The terms of Independent Members was then discussed.  Joan Jenkins 
had been appointed in 2004, for three years.  That appointment had 
been renewed (for a further three years) which meant she was either 
due to stand down or her term would need to be extended. 
 
It seemed reasonable to suggest that she be extended to the standard 
four year term and this was endorsed by the Members. 
 
The other two Independent Members did not have a specified end-date.  
They were not due to finish at the same time as Joan Jenkins, but 
would finish at the same time as each other.  It was suggested that one 
of them should volunteer to take a further three years and the other four 
years, to ensure that experience was maintained. 
 
Mr Eveling recalled that at his interview his term was stated as likely to 
be for three years only and Mr Ridgway agreed that he remembered the 
same, although no particular term had been stipulated in the Council 
minutes. 
 

RECOMMEND TO COUNCIL that the terms of office of the 
members of the Standards Committee be agreed as follows: 
 

 

3



Standards Committee 
13 July 2010 

 
 

4 

 Action By 

(1) District Members continue to be appointed annually. 
 
(2) The existing three Parish Members are considered for re-

appointment in May 2011, if they are re-elected and willing to 
stand.  This will preserve the experience they are building up in 
dealing with Standards matters and complaints.  Following the 
elections, discussions should take place to consider a 
staggered change-over of members.  In order to cover the 
period immediately after the election, the term of office of the 
three existing Parish Members be confirmed (if re-elected) until 
the end of November 2011. 

 
(3) It is important that the Council does not lose all of the 

experienced Independent Members at the same time, as the 
Committee and Sub-Committees all have to be Chaired by an 
Independent Member.  It is therefore suggested that: 

 
a. the term of office of Joan Jenkins is extended to May 2011;  
b. the terms of office of George Ridgway and Michael Eveling 
are confirmed to be until May 2012; and 

c. further discussions should take place to consider ways to 
facilitate a staggered change-over of Independent Members 
in future.  

   

51/10 LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN'S ANNUAL REVIEW OF 
BRECKLAND COUNCIL 2009/10 (FOR INFORMATION)  

 

 Members were pleased with the Ombudsman’s report. 
 
The item was noted.  

 

   

52/10 TOWN AND PARISH COUNCIL NEWSLETTER  
 

 The Standards Officer had completed the Newsletter and sent a copy to 
all Town and Parish Councils Clerks with a note asking if they would like 
to receive it by e-mail in future.  
 
Only one response had been received and the Standards Officer was 
uncertain whether the Clerks were actually circulating the copy to their 
members. 
 
The Parish Members on the Committee agreed to check this with their 
clerks, but one suggested that a lack of response did not necessarily 
mean a lack of interest. 
 
The Solicitor noted that he had been asked to talk to the Norfolk 
Association of Local Councils (NALC) about the possibility of joint 
training sessions.  He had heard about one such session arranged with 
North Norfolk at which the Code of Conduct, Standards and Audit had 
been discussed.  He asked for the Committee’s approval to proceed to 
talk to NALC to arrange something similar and this was agreed.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
John 
Chinnery  

   

53/10 STANDARDS POSTER  
 

 The Standards Officer told Members that she had visited Swaffham 
High School and explained the aim of the poster to some staff and 

 

4



Standards Committee 
13 July 2010 

 
 

5 

 Action By 

students there.  She had given them a copy of the Code of Conduct for 
reference. 
 
The teachers had seemed enthusiastic and one had said that posters 
would be sent in by 23 July 2010, when the school closed for the 
summer holidays. 
 
The Standards Officer had also attempted to make contact with schools 
in the other towns but no interest had been shown.  

   

54/10 VISITS TO DISTRICT COUNCIL MEETINGS  
 

 Mr Whittley updated Members on his visit to Development Control 
Committee on Monday 21 June 2010. 
 
He had used the proforma provided by the Standards Officer to note his 
comments and had found this very useful. 
 
The Members of the Committee had treated each other with respect 
and the Chairman had done well in exercising control when necessary.  
Mr Whittley thought that Members had generally acted very well and he 
said it had been a good meeting to go to.  

 

   

55/10 APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION - DEREHAM TOWN COUNCIL  
 

 The Standards Officer asked Members to note that it was a Community 
Car scheme referred to in the report (not Community Care as it 
appeared in some places). 
 
The Solicitor told Members that the quorum for Dereham Town Council 
was six and therefore they would not be able to discuss the items noted 
without a dispensation.  He advised them that if they were minded to 
grant the dispensation they had the option to permit Members with an 
interest to speak only, vote only or speak and vote. 
 

RESOLVED to grant a dispensation to Phillip Duigan, Michael 
Fanthorpe, Robin Goreham, John Gretton, Michael Griffin, Kate 
Millbank, Linda Monument and Lynda Turner, of Dereham Town 
Council, to speak and vote in connection with the following, up to 
the next elections in May 2011: 
 
1). Transfer of play areas and open spaces from Breckland 

Council; 
2). Community Car Scheme funding agreements with Breckland 

Council; and 
3). Matters relating to Breckland District Council’s management 

of the Neatherd Common.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Susan Allen  

   

56/10 NEXT MEETING  
 

 The arrangements for the next meeting on 6 September 2010 were 
noted.  

 

   

The meeting closed at 3.10 pm 
CHAIRMAN 

5



BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 
Report of the Monitoring Officer to the 
STANDARDS COMMITTEE – 7th September, 2010 
 
APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION – SWANTON MORLEY PARISH COUNCIL 
 

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 The Committee is asked to consider an application for a dispensation from Swanton 
Morley Parish Council in connection with the Swanton Morley Village Hall Trust. 

 

2. Recommendations 

 It is recommended that the Committee: 

2.1 Grants a dispensation to all of the named individuals to speak and vote in accordance 
with Option 3.3.2 to ensure the smooth running of Swanton Morley Parish Council in 
connection with the Swanton Morley Village Hall Trust. 

 
Note:  In preparing this report, due regard has been had to equality of opportunity, 
human rights, prevention of crime and disorder, environmental and risk management 
considerations as appropriate.  Relevant officers have been consulted in relation to any 
legal, financial or human resources implications and comments received are reflected in 
the report. 
 

3. Information, Issues and Options 

3.1 Background 

3.1.1 Regulations came into force on 15th June, 2009 entitled The Standards Committee 
(Further Provisions) (England) Regulations 2009 (S.I. 2009 No. 1255). 

3.1.2 These Regulations prescribe the circumstances in which the Standards Committee 
may grant dispensations to Breckland members and parish and town councillors in 
the Breckland area.  If a member acts in accordance with the grant of such a 
dispensation, any participation in business prohibited by the mandatory provisions of 
the Model Codes of Conduct is not a failure to comply with the authority’s Code.  
These Regulations refer to the circumstance where a member, or more usually a 
number of members, finds they are in a position where they have to declare a 
prejudicial interest under the Code of Conduct and leave the room.  In the 
circumstances described in the Regulations, those members might be able to obtain 
a dispensation (i.e. permission) from a Standards Committee to stay in the meeting 
after declaring the interest and either just speak, or speak and vote according to any 
dispensation granted. 

3.1.3 The Regulations state that a Standards Committee may grant a dispensation to a 
member or co-opted member of an authority in the following circumstances: 

 a) because the number of members of the authority prohibited from voting on 
the business of the authority a meeting exceeds 50% of those members that, 
but for the granting of any dispensations relating to that business, would 
otherwise be entitled to vote on that business; or 

Agenda Item 7

6



 b) the number of members prohibited from voting on the business of the 
authority at a meeting would, but for the granting of any dispensations relating 
to that business, upset the political balance of that meeting to such an extent 
as to prejudice the outcome of the voting in that meeting. 

3.2 Issues 

3.2.1 Swanton Morley Parish Council consists of 7 members. 

3.2.2 The Clerk to the Parish Council has sent a letter, see appendix attached, on behalf of 
the 7 members requesting a dispensation in connection with the Swanton Morley 
Village Hall Trust. 

3.2.3 The 7 parish councillors, namely Roger Attwewill, Stephen Westbury, Alexander 
Sommerville, Marilyn Thomas, George Northall, Alan Fleming and Bernard Marsham 
would have to declare personal and prejudicial interests when any matters regarding 
the Swanton Morley Village Hall Trust were before the Swanton Morley Parish 
Council for discussion and decision. 

3.2.4 The dispensation sought is to speak and vote.  However, the Committee do not have 
to grant dispensations for both, and can decide not to grant the request at all.  The 
Regulations state that the Committee must decide whether it is “appropriate” to grant 
the request.  The Standards for England Guidance states: 

“Clearly there is a difference between being eligible to apply for 
a dispensation and it being appropriate for that dispensation to 
be granted.  The committee will need to balance the prejudicial 
interest of the member seeking the dispensation to vote on an 
item of business, against the potential effect on the outcome of 
the vote if the member is unable to do so.” 

3.3 Options 

3.3.1 To refuse to grant a dispensation to the named parish councillors of Swanton Morley 
Parish Council in connection with the Swanton Morley Village Hall Trust. 

3.3.2 To grant a dispensation to the named parish councillors of Swanton Morley Parish 
Council in connection with the Swanton Morley Village Hall Trust. 

3.4 Reasons for Recommendation(s) 

3.4.1 To ensure that Swanton Morley Parish Council can make decisions on matters 
regarding Swanton Morley Village Hall Trust, it is recommended that Option 3.3.2 
above is agreed. 

4. Risk and Financial Implications 

4.1 Risk  

4.1.1 I have completed the Risk Management questionnaire and this report does not 
require a risk assessment because the issues covered by the recommendations are 
not significant in terms of risk. 

7



4.2 Financial  

4.2.1 None. 

5. Legal Implications 

5.1 None. 

6. Other Implications  

a) Equalities: There are no Equalities implications. 

b) Section 17, Crime & Disorder Act 1998: None 

c) Section 40, Natural Environment & Rural Communities Act 2006: None 

d) Human Resources: None 

e) Human Rights: None. 

f) Other:  [e.g. Children’s Act 2004] None 

7. Alignment to Council Priorities 

7.1 Your Council, Your Services: 

 a) Strengthen community consultation and involvement. 

 b) Involve people in the design and delivery of services which meet their needs. 

8. Ward/Community Affected 

8.1 Swanton Morley Parish. 

 
Background Papers 
None 
 
Lead Contact Officer: 
Name/Post: Susan Allen – Standards Officer 
Telephone: 01362 656395 
Email: sue.allen@breckland.gov.uk 
 
Key Decision Status (Executive Decisions only): 
Non-Key decision and not on Forward Plan 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
Letter from the Clerk to Swanton Morley Parish Council 
 

8



9



Agenda Item 8

10



11



12



13


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Application for Dispensation - Swanton Morley Parish Council
	Swanton Morley Dispensation Letter

	8 Standards Committee Posters
	Picture 2
	Picture 3
	Picture 4


